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of the order. Such an individual shall 
likewise inform any prospective em-
ployer who is considering hiring the in-
dividual to perform any of the safety- 
sensitive functions described in § 209.303 
of the order and provide a copy thereof 
within 5 days after receipt of the order 
or upon application for the position, 
whichever first occurs. 

§ 209.333 Prohibitions. 
(a) An individual subject to a dis-

qualification order shall not work for 
any railroad in any manner incon-
sistent with the order. 

(b) A railroad shall not employ any 
individual subject to a disqualification 
order in any manner inconsistent with 
the order. 

§ 209.335 Penalties. 
(a) Any individual who violates 

§ 209.331(c) or § 209.333(a) may be perma-
nently disqualified from performing 
the safety-sensitive functions described 
in § 209.303. Any individual who will-
fully violates § 209.331(c) or § 209.333(a) 
may also be assessed a civil penalty of 
at least $1,000 and not more than $5,000 
per violation. 

(b) Any railroad that violates § 209.331 
(a) or (b) or § 209.333(b) may be assessed 
a civil penalty of at least $5,000 and not 
more than $11,000 per violation. 

(c) Each day a violation continues 
shall constitute a separate offense. 

[54 FR 42907, Oct. 18, 1989, as amended at 63 
FR 11619, Mar. 10, 1998] 

§ 209.337 Information collection. 
The information collection require-

ments in § 209.331 of this part have been 
reviewed by the Office of Management 
and Budget pursuant to the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1980, (44 U.S.C. 3501 et 
seq.) and have been assigned OMB con-
trol number 2130–0529. 

[56 FR 66791, Dec. 26, 1991] 

Subpart E—Reporting of Remedial 
Actions 

SOURCE: 59 FR 43676, Aug. 24, 1994, unless 
otherwise noted. 

§ 209.401 Purpose and scope. 
(a) The purpose of this subpart is to 

prevent accidents and casualties aris-

ing from the operation of a railroad 
that result from a railroad’s failure to 
remedy certain violations of the Fed-
eral railroad safety laws for which as-
sessment of a civil penalty has been 
recommended. 

(b) To achieve this purpose, this sub-
part requires that if an FRA Safety In-
spector notifies a railroad both that as-
sessment of a civil penalty will be rec-
ommended for its failure to comply 
with a provision of the Federal railroad 
safety laws and that a remedial actions 
report must be submitted, the railroad 
shall report to the FRA Safety Inspec-
tor, within 30 days after the end of the 
calendar month in which such notifica-
tion is received, actions taken to rem-
edy that failure. 

(c) This subpart does not relieve the 
railroad of the underlying responsi-
bility to comply with a provision of the 
Federal railroad safety laws. The 30- 
day period after the end of the calendar 
month in which notification is received 
is intended merely to provide the rail-
road with an opportunity to prepare its 
report to FRA, and does not excuse 
continued noncompliance. 

(d) This subpart requires the submis-
sion of remedial actions reports for the 
general categories of physical defects, 
recordkeeping and reporting viola-
tions, and filing violations, where the 
railroad can literally and specifically 
correct a failure to comply with a pro-
vision of the Federal railroad safety 
laws, as reasonably determined by the 
FRA Safety Inspector. No railroad is 
required to submit a report for a fail-
ure involving either a completed or 
past transaction or a transaction that 
it can no longer remedy. 

§ 209.403 Applicability. 
This subpart applies to any railroad 

that receives written notification from 
an FRA Safety Inspector both (i) that 
assessment of a civil penalty will be 
recommended for its failure to comply 
with a provision of the Federal railroad 
safety laws and (ii) that it must submit 
a remedial actions report. 

§ 209.405 Reporting of remedial ac-
tions. 

(a) Except as provided in § 209.407, 
each railroad that has received written 
notification on Form FRA F 6180.96 
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from an FRA Safety Inspector both 
that assessment of a civil penalty will 
be recommended for the railroad’s fail-
ure to comply with a provision of the 
Federal railroad safety laws and that it 
must submit a remedial actions report, 
shall report on this form all actions 
that it takes to remedy that failure. 
The railroad shall submit the com-
pleted form to the FRA Safety Inspec-
tor within 30 days after the end of the 
calendar month in which the notifica-
tion is received. 

(1) Date of receipt of notification. If the 
FRA Safety Inspector provides written 
notification to the railroad by first 
class mail, then for purposes of deter-
mining the calendar month in which 
notification is received, the railroad 
shall be presumed to have received the 
notification five business days fol-
lowing the date of mailing. 

(2) Completion of Form FRA F 6180.96, 
including selection of railroad remedial 
action code. Each railroad shall com-
plete the remedial actions report in the 
manner prescribed on the report form. 
The railroad shall select the one reme-
dial action code on the reporting form 
that most accurately reflects the ac-
tion or actions that it took to remedy 
the failure, such as, repair or replace-
ment of a defective component without 
movement, movement of a locomotive 
or car for repair (where permitted) and 
its subsequent repair, completion of a 
required test or inspection, removal of 
a noncomplying item from service but 
not for repair (where permitted), reduc-
tion of operating speed (where suffi-
cient to achieve compliance), or any 
combination of actions appropriate to 
remedy the noncompliance cited. Any 
railroad selecting the remedial action 
code ‘‘other remedial actions’’ shall 
also furnish FRA with a brief narrative 
description of the action or actions 
taken. 

(3) Submission of Form FRA F 6180.96. 
The railroad shall return the form by 
first class mail to the FRA Safety In-
spector whose name and address appear 
on the form. 

(b) Any railroad concluding that the 
violation alleged on the inspection re-
port may not have occurred may sub-
mit the remedial actions report with 
an appropriate written explanation. 
Failure to raise all pertinent defenses 

does not foreclose the railroad from 
doing so in response to a penalty de-
mand. 

§ 209.407 Delayed reports. 
(a) If a railroad cannot initiate or 

complete remedial actions within 30 
days after the end of the calendar 
month in which the notification is re-
ceived, it shall— 

(1) Prepare, in writing, an expla-
nation of the reasons for such delay 
and a good faith estimate of the date 
by which it will complete the remedial 
actions, stating the name and job title 
of the preparer and including either: 

(i) A photocopy of both sides of the 
Form FRA F 6180.96 on which the rail-
road received notification; or 

(ii) The following information: 
(A) The inspection report number; 
(B) The inspection date; and 
(C) The item number; and 
(2) Sign, date, and submit such writ-

ten explanation and estimate, by first 
class mail, to the FRA Safety Inspec-
tor whose name and address appear on 
the notification, within 30 days after 
the end of the calendar month in which 
the notification is received. 

(b) Within 30 days after the end of the 
calendar month in which all such reme-
dial actions are completed, the railroad 
shall report in accordance with the re-
medial action code procedures ref-
erenced in § 209.405(a). The additional 
time provided by this section for a rail-
road to submit a delayed report shall 
not excuse it from liability for any 
continuing violation of a provision of 
the Federal railroad safety laws. 

§ 209.409 Penalties. 
Any person who violates any require-

ment of this subpart or causes the vio-
lation of any such requirement is sub-
ject to a civil penalty of at least $650 
and not more than $25,000 per violation, 
except that: Penalties may be assessed 
against individuals only for willful vio-
lations, and, where a grossly negligent 
violation or a pattern of repeated vio-
lations has created an imminent haz-
ard of death or injury to persons, or 
has caused death or injury, a penalty 
not to exceed $100,000 per violation may 
be assessed. Each day a violation con-
tinues shall constitute a separate of-
fense. A person may also be subject to 
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the criminal penalties provided for in 
49 U.S.C. 21311 (formerly codified in 45 
U.S.C. 438(e)) for knowingly and will-
fully falsifying reports required by this 
subpart. 

[59 FR 43676, Aug. 24, 1994, as amended at 63 
FR 11619, Mar. 10, 1998; 69 FR 30592, May 28, 
2004; 72 FR 51196, Sept. 6, 2007; 74 FR 79700, 
Dec. 30, 2008] 

Subpart F—Enforcement, Appeal 
and Hearing Procedures for 
Rail Routing Decisions Pursu-
ant to 49 CFR § 172.820 

§ 209.501 Review of rail transportation 
safety and security route analysis. 

(a) Review of route analysis. If the As-
sociate Administrator for Safety deter-
mines that a railroad carrier’s route 
selection, analysis and documentation 
pursuant to § 172.820 of chapter I of this 
title is deficient and fails to establish 
that the route chosen by the carrier 
poses the least overall safety and secu-
rity risk, the Associate Administrator 
shall issue a written notice of review 
(‘‘Notice’’) to the railroad carrier. The 
Notice shall specifically address each 
deficiency found in the railroad car-
rier’s route analysis. The Notice may 
also include suggested mitigation 
measures that the railroad carrier may 
take to remedy the deficiencies found, 
including selection of an alternative 
commercially feasible routing. 

(b) Conference to resolve deficiencies. 
After issuing the Notice, the Associate 
Administrator conferences with the 
railroad carrier for a thirty (30)-day pe-
riod, or such longer period as provided 
by the Associate Administrator, to re-
solve the deficiencies identified in the 
Notice. The Associate Administrator 
keeps a record of all written cor-
respondence with the railroad carrier 
and a summary of each meeting and 
telephone conversation with the rail-
road carrier that pertains to the No-
tice. 

(c) Consultation with and comment 
from other agencies. If, after the close of 
the conference period, the Associate 
Administrator concludes that the 
issues identified have not been satis-
factorily resolved, the Associate Ad-
ministrator: 

(1) Consults with the Transportation 
Security Administration (‘‘TSA’’) and 

the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials 
Safety Administration (PHMSA) re-
garding the safety and security of the 
route proposed by the railroad carrier 
and any alternative route(s) over which 
the carrier is authorized to operate 
that are being considered by the Asso-
ciate Administrator and prepares a 
written summary of the recommenda-
tions from TSA and PHMSA; 

(2) Obtains the comments of the Sur-
face Transportation Board (‘‘STB’’) re-
garding whether the alternative 
route(s) being considered by the Asso-
ciate Administrator would be commer-
cially practicable; and 

(3) Fully considers the input of TSA, 
PHMSA and the STB and renders a de-
cision pursuant to paragraph (d) of this 
section which shall be administratively 
final. 

(d) Decision. (1) If the Associate Ad-
ministrator finds that the route anal-
ysis and documentation provided by 
the railroad carrier are sufficient to 
support the route selected by the car-
rier or that valid issues of commercial 
practicability preclude an alternative 
route, the Associate Administrator 
concludes the review without further 
action and so notifies the railroad car-
rier in writing. 

(2) If the Associate Administrator 
concludes that the railroad carrier’s 
route analysis does not support the 
railroad carrier’s original selected 
route, that safety and security consid-
erations establish a significant pref-
erence for an alternative route, and 
that the alternative route is commer-
cially practicable, the Associate Ad-
ministrator issues a second written no-
tice (2nd Notice) to the railroad carrier 
that: 

(i) Specifically identifies deficiencies 
found in the railroad carrier’s route 
analysis, including a clear description 
of the risks on the selected route that 
have not been satisfactorily mitigated; 

(ii) Explains why the available data 
and reasonable inferences indicate that 
a commercially practicable alternative 
route poses fewer overall safety and se-
curity risks than the route selected by 
the railroad carrier; and 

(iii) Directs the railroad carrier, be-
ginning within twenty (20) days of the 
issuance date of the 2nd Notice on the 
railroad carrier, to temporarily use the 
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